
December 14, 2023

FTC Challenges to Orange Book Listings: 

Considerations for Patent Holders



fr.com  |  2

Meet the Speakers

Gwilym Attwell
Principal

attwell@fr.com

Martina Hufnal
Principal

tyreushufnal@fr.com

Tina Murphy
Staff Attorney

tmurphy@fr.com



fr.com  |  3

Agenda

The FTC's November 7 letters

FTC and the District Court

What to do?

FDA and the Orange Book Patent Listing Process



The FTC's November 7 letters



fr.com  |  5

The Issue - the FTC's November 7 letters

Letters sent to 10 pharma companies:

▪ Astrazeneca LP, Abbvie, Inc., Teva Branded Pharmaceutical; Norton Limited, Mylan Specialty 

LP, Kaleo Inc., Impax Labs, Glaxo Smith Kline, Glaxo Group, and Boehringer Ingelheim

▪ Covered technology relates to "specific asthma and other inhaler devices, Restasis multidose

bottles, and epinephrine autoinjectors, also commonly known as EpiPens"

FTC also notified FDA, pursuant to 21 C.F.R. § 314.53(f)(1), that the agency "disputes 

the accuracy or relevance of the listed information for these patents, which may require 

that the manufacturers remove the listing or certify under penalty of perjury that the 

listings comply with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.”

▪ Gives NDA holders 30 days to withdraw the patents, amend their listing, or certify that the 

patents are properly listed.
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History and a Glance at the Future
Amicus Brief, American Bioscience, Inc. v. BristolMyers Squibb Co., No. 00-cv-08577 (C.D. Cal. September 7, 2000)

▪ https://www.ftc.gov/sites/default/files/documents/cases/2000/09/amicusbrief.pdf

January 8, 2002 -- In re: Buspirone Patent Litig., MDL Docket No. 1410 (S.D.N.Y. 2002)

▪ https://www.ftc.gov/sites/default/files/documents/amicus_briefs/re-buspirone-antitrust-litigation/buspirone.pdf

April 23, 2002 – FTC's complaint and proposed Consent Agreement in Bioavail v. Andrx matter

▪ https://www.ftc.gov/sites/default/files/documents/cases/2002/04/bioavaildecision.htm

Amicus Brief, SmithKline Beecham Corp. v. Apotex Corp., No. 99-cv- 4304 (E.D. Pa. January 28, 2003)

▪ https://www.ftc.gov/sites/default/files/documents/amicus_briefs/smithkline-beecham-corp.v.apotex-corp./smithklineamicus.pdf

https://www.ftc.gov/sites/default/files/documents/cases/2000/09/amicusbrief.pdf
https://www.ftc.gov/sites/default/files/documents/amicus_briefs/re-buspirone-antitrust-litigation/buspirone.pdf
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History and a Glance at the Future, continued
June 18, 2003, FDA amended 21 C.F.R. § 314.53 to clarify Patent Submission and Listing Requirements.

▪ limits to one per ANDA or 505(b)(2) application the maximum number of statutory 30-month stays of approval to which an innovator will be entitled when it submits 

multiple patents for the same NDA.

▪ Patents claiming packaging, intermediates, or metabolites must not be submitted for listing.

▪ Patents claiming a different polymorphic form of the active ingredient described in the NDA must be submitted if the NDA holder has test data demonstrating that a 

drug product containing the polymorph will perform the same as the drug product described in the NDA.

▪ Makes changes to the patent information required to be submitted and provides declaration forms for submitting that information to FDA, both with the NDA and 

after NDA approval; and

▪ Does not require claim-by-claim listing on the declaration form except for method-of-use patents claiming approved methods of use.
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Part of a bigger recent initiative? Government agency activity

2013 - FTC v. Actavis, Inc., 570 U.S. 136 (2013)

▪ reverse payment settlements in patent infringement litigation can sometimes violate the antitrust laws

2015 - King Drug Co. of Florence, Inc. v. Cephalon, Inc., 88 F. Supp. 3d 402 (E.D. Pa. 2015); FTC was also a plaintiff

▪ company's payments to generic manufacturers were sufficiently large to give rise to inference 

that payments were intended to induce them to stay off market

2020 - FTC v. AbbVie Inc., 976 F.3d 327 (3d Cir. 2020)

▪ sham litigation and reverse payments
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Part of a bigger recent initiative? Government agency activity

2020 – present: FTC comments in connection with proposed business deals / transactions

Orange Book Transparency Act of 2020

• Required the FDA to solicit public comment regarding the "types of patent information that should be included on, 

or removed from, the Orange Book and to transmit to Congress a summary of such comments and actions the Agency is considering 

taking, if any, in response to such public comment by January 5, 2022."

• No action to date by FDA or Congress

Impax Lab’ys., Inc. v. FTC, 994 F.3d 484 (5th Cir. 2021)

▪ evidence supported finding by FTC using rule-of-reason analysis that reverse payment settlement threatened competition in violation of Sherman Act

July 22, 2022: USPTO issued a Notice clarifying the “duty of reasonable inquiry” and “duty of disclosure” owed 

to the USPTO as those duties relate to information and “statements material to patentability” that are received from 

or submitted to the FDA.

• See Federal Register, Vol. 87, No. 145, July 29, 2022.

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2022-07-29/pdf/2022-16299.pdf
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Part of a bigger recent initiative? Government agency activity

November 10, 2022 -- Amicus Brief, Jazz Pharms., Inc. v, Avadel CNS Pharms. No. 1:21-cv- 00691 (D. Del. Nov. 2022) 

(Doc. No. 22-3),

▪ https://www.ftc.gov/system/files/ftc_gov/pdf/P163500JazzPharmaAmicusBrief.pdf

November 20, 2023 -- FTC's amicus filing in Mylan v Sanofi (C.A. No. 23-836-MRH – Western 

District of Pennsylvania)

"FTC takes no position on Mylan’s specific factual allegations"

"The FTC takes no position on whether the specific patents at issue in this case were properly listed."

https://www.ftc.gov/system/files/ftc_gov/pdf/P163500JazzPharmaAmicusBrief.pdf
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Part of a bigger recent initiative? Government agency activity
September 2023 – FTC policy statement warning drug manufacturers against improperly 

listing certain drugs patents in the Orange Book.

▪ Goal was to "put market participants on notice that the FTC intends to scrutinize improper Orange Book listings to 

determine whether these constitute unfair methods of competition in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act."

▪ "Listing patents in the Orange Book that do not meet the statutory listing criteria may constitute an unfair method of 

competition in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act"

▪ "[I]mproper listing of patents in the Orange Book may also constitute illegal monopolization."

▪ "Individuals who submit or cause the submission of improper Orange Book patent listings, including those who certify 

compliance under 21 C.F.R. § 314.53(c)(2)(ii)(R), may be held individually liable. Further, if the FTC encounters false certifications filed 

under 21 C.F.R. § 314.53(c)(2)(ii)(R) that may constitute a potential criminal violation for the submission of false statements,34 the 

Commission may refer such cases to the U.S. Department of Justice for further investigation.

November 7, 2023 – FTC's letter to pharma companies

December 7, 2023 -- Draft Interagency Guidance Framework for Considering the Exercise of March-In Rights

▪ When an invention is made with federal assistance, the federal government may exercise its “march-in” rights to license the patented invention to another party, 

even when the patent owner disagrees.
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Overview

▪ The Orange Book and FDA's listing process

▪ Cases discussing listing of patents in the Orange Book

▪ What to do – both going forward as well as looking at previous listing decisions



FDA and the Orange Book 
Patent Listing Process
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What is in the Orange Book?

The Approved Drug Products with Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations (the Orange 

Book), lists

(1) drug products approved on the basis of safety and effectiveness, which have not been 
withdrawn for either of those reasons, by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) under the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (the FD&C Act) and

(2) patent and exclusivity information related to approved drug products.

Biologic products, compounded drugs, and drug products that are not the subject of an 

approved NDA or ANDA, among others, are not listed in the Orange Book.
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Why are Patents Listed in the Orange Book?

Timing of approval of 505(b)(2) and Abbreviated New Drug Applications (ANDAs)

Patent and Exclusivity Protections for the Reference Listed Drug (RLD) listed in the Orange 

Book

▪ Paragraph I Certification – no Orange Book-listed patents

▪ Paragraph II Certification – the Orange Book-listed patents have expired

▪ Paragraph III Certification - the generic applicant does not seek to market its generic 
product until the Orange Book-listed patent expires

▪ Paragraph IV Certification - the patent is invalid, unenforceable, or will not be infringed 
by the manufacture, use, or sale of the drug product for which the ANDA or 505(b)(2) 
application is submitted)

▪ Section viii Statement - the patent does not claim a use for which the ANDA or 
505(b)(2) applicant is seeking approval

The information contained in the Orange Book allows the generic applicants to 
easily reference and identify patents that may prevent/delay their generic products' 
approval.
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Benefits of Listing in the Orange Book

Paragraph IV Certification = "Artificial" Act of Patent 
Infringement

▪ Generic applicant - Notice of Paragraph IV Certification within 20 days of 
FDA acknowledgment letter

▪ Patent owner initiates patent infringement action within 45 days of notice

▪ 30-month stay of approval of the 505(b)(2) application or ANDA while the 
litigation is pending is available to timely listed patents
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Which Patents are Listed in the Orange Book?
Any unexpired patent for which a claim of patent infringement could reasonably be asserted if a 

person not licensed by the owner of the patent engaged in the manufacture, use, or sale of the 

drug, and that

(1) claims the drug substance (active ingredient) or the drug product (formulation or 
composition) that is the subject of the NDA (or amendment or supplement) or

(2) claims a method of using such drug for which approval is sought or has been granted in 
the application

▪ NDA applicants are required to amend NDA applications if a patent that claims the drug or a 

method of using the drug is issued after the filing date, but before approval of the application.

▪ NDA applicants are required to timely list patents that claim the drug or a method of using the 

drug is issued after the approval date of the NDA.
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What Patents are Listed in the Orange Book?

If the patent claims the approved method of use, but does not cover the approved 

indication or condition of use in its entirety, only the specific approved method of use 

claimed by the patent for which a claim of patent infringement could reasonably be 

asserted if a person not licensed by the patent owner engaged in the manufacture, use, or 

sale of the drug product may be listed.

If the patent claims the approved method of use, but the claimed use is broader than the 

indication or other approved condition of use in the labeling, only the specific approved 

method of use that is described in FDA-approved product labeling may be included in the 

use code.
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What Patents are Listed in the Orange Book?

Process patents, patents claiming packaging, patents claiming metabolites, and patents 

claiming intermediates are not listable.
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How are Patents Listed in the Orange Book?

The NDA applicant submits form FDA 

3542a (pre-approval with the NDA filing) 

and FDA 3542 (within 30 days of approval 

or within 30 days of patent issuance after 

approval).

If the NDA holder submits the patent 

information after the date on which a 

substantially complete generic application is 

submitted, a 30-month stay of approval is 

not available for the Paragraph IV litigation 

based on that late listed patent.
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FDA’s Role in patent listing

▪ FDA's role in patent listing is "purely ministerial" and does not involve substantive 

review of patents

▪ FDA does not have the expertise or authority for reviewing patents and assessing 

patent challenges

▪ FDA has stated that it does not have the ability for reviewing patent listings due to lack 

of resources

▪ It would lead to disputes and increased litigation against the FDA
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FDA’s Role in Patent Listing

In 2003, FDA amended 21 C.F.R. § 314.53 to clarify the types of patents that must and 

must not be submitted for listing in the Orange Book.

The preamble to the final rule addressed comments about patents claiming packaging 

and devices or containers that are ‘integral’ to the drug product

▪ Patents claiming packaging or containers must not be submitted

▪ FDA did not expressly address device-related patents

▪ Whether the patent claims the finished dosage form of the approved drug 
product e.g., tablet, capsule, or solution, that contains a drug substance, generally, 
but not necessarily, in association with one or more other ingredients
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FDA’s Role in Patent Listing

▪ Since the 2003 amendments, several drug companies have sought advisory opinions 

on Orange Book listing requirements of patents claiming drug delivery device and 

packaging.

▪ The FDA has failed to adequately respond to the requests thus far. Thus, there is no clear 
advice yet from the FDA about the eligibility criteria of patents claiming drug delivery 
devices.

▪ In 2016, FDA issued a final rule to implement certain provisions of the The Medicare 

Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003 (MMA), which revised 

the requirements related to the submission of patent information.

▪ If a patent is eligible for listing based on claiming the drug substance and the 
drug product, an applicant would only be required to identify one of these two bases for 
listing.
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FDA’s Role in Patent Listing

▪ In 2020, partially based on the advisory opinions sought from the drug companies, FDA 

requested comments on the types of patents currently listed in the Orange Book.

▪ FDA also stated that it is “aware that some NDA holders have submitted patents for 

listing in the Orange Book, including certain types of device-related patents and REMS-

related patents, for which there may be uncertainty regarding whether these are in fact 

the type of patents that must be submitted.”

▪ FDA sought comments on the "listing of patents that claim a device constituent part of 

a combination product approved under section 505 of the FD&C Act ( e.g., a drug 

delivery device); the listing of patents that claim a device whose use is referenced in 

approved drug labeling; the listing of patents associated with an established REMS; 

and the listing of patents associated with digital applications ( e.g., clinical decision 

support software, software as a medical device)."
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FDA’s Role in Patent Listing

In 2021, the President signed into law the Orange Book Transparency Act of 2020, which required the FDA to 

solicit public comment regarding the "types of patent information that should be included on, or removed from, 

the Orange Book and to transmit to Congress a summary of such comments and actions the Agency is 

considering taking, if any, in response to such public comment by January 5, 2022."

In its report to Congress, FDA stated that it will create a multidisciplinary working group to "evaluate whether 

additional clarity is needed regarding the types of patents, patent information, or other patent-related 

information that should be included in, or removed from, the Orange Book, consistent with the current statutory 

requirements for patent listing in the FD&C Act."

Further FDA action is still pending.
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Wrongfully Listing Patents in the Orange Book

▪ The 3542 form is submitted with a certification 

under penalty of perjury that the information is 

correct

▪ Patent listing dispute

▪ Patent listing counterclaim in an infringement 

action

▪ Antitrust claim
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Patent Listing Disputes

▪ 21 C.F.R. § 314.53(f)(1) describes a process for patent listing disputes

▪ Disputing the accuracy or relevance of patent information published in the Orange Book

▪ FDA sends a statement of the dispute to the NDA holder

▪ NDA holder's response to patent listing disputes

▪ NDA verifies correctness, or withdraws or amends the patent information or use code within 30 days

▪ FDA updates the Orange Book Patent Listing Dispute List



fr.com  |  28

Patent Listing Dispute List



Litigation Precedent And 
Implications
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FTC Policy Statement Re OB Listing Raises Section 5 Power
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FTC Notice Letters Also Raise Section 5 Power
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FTC’s Powers Under Section 5 of FTC Act

▪ Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 45(a), prohibits, inter alia, “unfair methods of competition.” Unfair methods 
of competition include any conduct that would violate the Sherman Antitrust Act or the Clayton Act.

▪ The FTC may initiate an enforcement action using either an administrative or judicial process if it has “reason to 
believe” that the law is being or has been violated. Violations of some laws may result in civil penalties, which are 
adjusted annually for inflation. Commission Rule 1.98, 16 C.F.R. Sec. 1.98.

▪ Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 53(b), authorizes the  Commission to seek preliminary and permanent 
injunctions to remedy “any provision of law enforced by the Federal Trade Commission.”
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Example of FTC Using Section 5 Power



fr.com  |  34

FTC Has Utilized Judicial Enforcement

▪ Fed. Trade Comm'n v. Roomster Corp., 654 F. Supp. 3d 244 (S.D.N.Y. 2023)
▪ Plaintiff FTC alleges two counts of violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a)

▪ Fed. Trade Comm'n v. Quincy Bioscience Holding Co., Inc., 646 F. Supp. 3d 518 (S.D.N.Y. 2022)
▪ The FTC and the NY AG brought this alleging that defendants’ advertising of Prevagen is false advertising in violation of 

Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act

▪ Fed. Trade Comm'n v. Fleetcor Techs., Inc., 620 F. Supp. 3d 1268 (N.D. Ga. 2022)
▪ Counts I through IV asserted violations of Section 5 of the FTC Act in connection with allegedly deceptive representations 

made by FleetCor

▪ Fed. Trade Comm'n v. Ivy Cap., Inc., 340 F.R.D. 602, 605 (D. Nev. 2022)
▪ The FTC initiated this action against movants for their roles in a telemarketing scheme in violation of section 5(a) of the FTC 

Act and several provisions of the Telemarketing Sales Rule

▪ Fed. Trade Comm'n v. Shkreli, 581 F. Supp. 3d 579, 624 (S.D.N.Y. 2022)
▪ The FTC brought this action pursuant to authority given to it in the FTC Act. The FTC Act declares “[u]nfair methods of 

competition” to be unlawful, 15 U.S.C. § 45 (Section 5 of the FTC Act), and directs the FTC to prevent violations of the FTC 
Act. “Unfair methods of competition” under the FTC Act encompass violations of the Sherman Act.



fr.com  |  35

FTC’s Policy Statement Insights On Thinking 

▪ “Listing patents in the Orange Book that do not meet the statutory listing criteria may constitute an unfair 

method of competition in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act.”

▪ “Improper listing of patents in the Orange Book as a method of competition. It is undertaken by a brand drug 

manufacturer and is not an inherent market condition.” 

▪ “Improperly listing patents in the Orange Book can be unfair because it is not competition on the merits of 

drug quality or price, and it tends to negatively affect competitive conditions by impeding opportunities for 

generic rials to compete, thus limiting consumer choice.” 

▪ “Improperly listing patents in the Orange Book can be an unfair method of competition is consistent with the 

FTC’s historical use of Section 5, which has reached ‘conduct resulting in direct evidence of harm, or likely 

harm to competition, that does not rely upon market definition.’”

35
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▪ In re Actos End-Payor Antitrust Litig., 417 F. Supp. 3d 

352, 375 (S.D.N.Y. 2019), aff'd sub nom. United Food & 

Com. Workers Loc. 1776 & Participating Emps. Health 

& Welfare Fund v. Takeda Pharm. Co. Ltd., 11 F.4th 118 

(2d Cir. 2021)

▪ Antitrust plaintiffs alleging anti-competitive conduct do not 

need to show an improper Orange Book listing was made in 

bad faith.  Showing a good faith basis for listing, of course, can 

be part of the defense to an allegation of anti-competitive 

conduct.

▪ United Food & Com. Workers Loc. 1776 v. Takeda 

Pharm. Co. Ltd., 11 F.4th 118, 134–35 (2d Cir. 2021)

▪ Brand listed patents claiming drug combinations in Orange 

Book for drug with only a single active ingredient.  Court of 

Appeals concluded that combination patents claim the 

combination, not substituent parts. Court further concluded 

that antitrust plaintiffs need not show that brand’s 

interpretation of listing rules was unreasonable. Plaintiffs need 

only allege brand had market power, it incorrectly listed, and 

there was injury.

▪ Caraco Pharm. Lab’ys., Ltd. v. Novo Nordisk A/S, 

566 U.S. 399, 405 (2012)

▪ A use code is “patent information” under 21 U.S.C. §

355(j)(5)(C)(ii)(l) and therefore a generic can file a 

counterclaim challenging not only improper patent listing, 

but also improper use codes.

▪ Jazz Pharms., Inc. v. Avadel CNS Pharms., LLC, 60 

F.4th 1373, 1378 (Fed. Cir. 2023)

▪ Patent claimed a computer-implemented system for 

treating a patient with a drug. Court of appeals found that 

“systems” describe an apparatus as a whole; “methods” 

describe performance of steps. The statute only allows for 

listing patents claiming drugs or methods of using 

drugs. Patent delisted.

Listing Challenges Raised in District Court
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And Continue To Be Raised

▪ Teva Branded Pharm. Inc. v. Amneal Pharm. LLC No: 23-cv-20964 (D.N.J. Oct. 6, 2023)

▪ GW Research Limited v. Teva Pharmaceuticals, Inc. et al. No: 2-23-cv-00018 (D.N.J. Jan. 3, 2023)

▪ Metacel Pharmaceuticals LLC v. Rubicon Research Private Limited No: 2-21-cv-19463 (D. NJ Oct. 29, 2021)

▪ In Re: Ozempic (Semaglutide) Patent Litigation No: 1-22-md-03038 (D. Del. Aug. 5, 2022)

▪ Jazz Pharmaceuticals, Inc. v. Avadel CNS Pharmaceuticals No: 1-22-cv-00941 (D. Del. July 15, 2022)

▪ Corcept Therapeutics, Inc. v. Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc. et al No: 1-18-cv-03632 (D.N.J. Mar. 15, 2018)
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Reasonable Basis Standard Will Be Important

▪ In re Actos End-Payor Antitrust Litig., 417 F. Supp. 3d 352, 373 (S.D.N.Y. 2019), aff'd sub nom. United Food 

& Com. Workers Loc. 1776 & Participating Emps. Health & Welfare Fund v. Takeda Pharm. Co. Ltd., 11 F.4th 

118 (2d Cir. 2021)

▪ Plaintiffs could not state a monopolization claim against an NDA holder, predicated on an allegedly 
improper Orange Book listing, where the defendant's interpretation of the listing statute was reasonable.

▪ Organon Inc. v. Mylan Pharms., Inc., 293 F. Supp. 2d 453, 461 (D.N.J. 2003)

▪ Finding no liability where the NDA holder listed a patent claiming an “off-label” use of the drug because there was 
a “reasonable basis for the submission”
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To Be Continued…

▪ What with the FTC do?

▪ Initiate additional FDA processes?

▪ Respond to companies who refuse to delist?

▪ File an agency enforcement action or a judicial enforcement action?

▪ What will brand companies do?

▪ Explore strategies on how and whether to respond to the FDA process?

▪ List questionable patents or not?

▪ Remove questionable patents or not?

▪ Increase in opinions of counsel on the issue of listing?

▪ What will generic companies do?

▪ More challenges using the FDA process?

▪ More challenges in district court?

▪ Let the FTC take charge?

▪ Will this increase certainty or make it worse?
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